[bookmark: _GoBack]IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
	:
	CRIMINAL NO.

	
	
	

	v.
	:
	DATE FILED:

	
	
	

	CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT
    
	:
	VIOLATIONS:

	

	:

:

:
	18 U.S.C.  1951(a) (robbery which 
interferes with interstate commerce – 10 
counts)
18 U.S.C.  1 18 U.S.C. §951(a) (attempted robbery which interferes with interstate commerce – 1 count)

	
	
	


II N D I C T M E N T

COUNT ONE
THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

		1.	At all times relevant to this indictment, the Rite Aid Pharmacy located at 5040 City Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce by providing to customers pharmaceuticals, food, accessories, and other goods produced, purchased, and transported from other states and countries to Pennsylvania.
			2.	On or about March 25, 2014, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendant
CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendant CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT unlawfully took and obtained approximately $90 in United States currency from Rite Aid Pharmacy located at 5040 City Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, in the presence of an employee of Rite Aid and against her will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future to the employee of Rite Aid, by brandishing and using an actual or facsimile firearm to threaten and control the victim to steal United States currency from her.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a).


COUNT TWO
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

		1.	At all times relevant to this indictment, the Rite Aid Pharmacy located at 5040 City Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce by providing to customers pharmaceuticals, food, accessories, and other goods produced, purchased, and transported from other states and countries to Pennsylvania.
			2.	On or about August 30, 2014, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendant
CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT 

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendant CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT unlawfully took and obtained approximately $433 in United States currency from Rite Aid located at 5040 City Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, in the presence of an employee of Rite Aid and against her will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future to the employee of Rite Aid, by brandishing and using an actual or facsimile firearm to threaten and control the victim to steal United States currency from her.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a).


COUNT THREE
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

		1.	At all times relevant to this indictment, the Rite Aid Pharmacy located at 5040 City Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce by providing to customers pharmaceuticals, food, accessories, and other goods produced, purchased, and transported from other states and countries to Pennsylvania.
			2.	On or about December 18, 2014, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendant
CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT 

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendant CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT unlawfully took and obtained approximately $200 in United States currency from Rite Aid located at 5040 City Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, in the presence of an employee of Rite Aid and against her will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future to the employee of Rite Aid, by claiming to have a firearm to threaten and control the victim to steal United States currency from her.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a).


COUNT FOUR
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

		1.	At all times relevant to this indictment, the Rite Aid Pharmacy located at 5212 Baltimore Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce by providing to customers pharmaceuticals, food, accessories, and other goods produced, purchased, and transported from other states and countries to Pennsylvania.
			2.	On or about December 18, 2014, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendant
CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT 

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendant CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT unlawfully took and obtained approximately $200 in United States currency from Rite Aid located at 5212 Baltimore Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, in the presence of an employee of Rite Aid and against her will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future to the employee of Rite Aid, by brandishing and using an actual or facsimile firearm to threaten and control the victim to steal United States currency from her and to threaten another employee to facilitate his escape.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a).


COUNT FIVE
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

		1.	At all times relevant to this indictment, the Rite Aid Pharmacy located at 5040 City Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce by providing to customers pharmaceuticals, food, accessories, and other goods produced, purchased, and transported from other states and countries to Pennsylvania.
			2.	On or about December 27, 2014, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendant
CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT 

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendant CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT unlawfully took and obtained approximately $119 in United States currency from Rite Aid located at 5040 City Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, in the presence of an employee of Rite Aid and against her will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future to the employee of Rite Aid, by claiming to have a firearm to threaten and control the victim to steal United States currency from her.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a).


COUNT SIX
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

		1.	At all times relevant to this indictment, the CVS Pharmacy located at 7520 City Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce by providing to customers pharmaceuticals, food, accessories, and other goods produced, purchased, and transported from other states and countries to Pennsylvania.
			2.	On or about December 28, 2014, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendant
CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT 

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendant CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT unlawfully took and obtained approximately $180 in United States currency from CVS Pharmacy located at 7520 City Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, in the presence of an employee of CVS Pharmacy and against her will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future to the employee of CVS Pharmacy, by claiming to have a firearm to threaten and control the victim to steal United States currency from her.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a).


COUNT SEVEN
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

		1.	At all times relevant to this indictment, the Family Dollar Store located at 5814 Woodland Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce by providing to customers consumer goods, accessories, and other goods produced, purchased, and transported from other states and countries to Pennsylvania.
			2.	On or about January 1, 2015, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendant
CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT 

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendant CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT unlawfully took and obtained approximately $200 in United States currency from Family Dollar Store located at 5814 Woodland Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, in the presence of an employee of Family Dollar and against her will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future to the employee of Family Dollar Store, by claiming to have a firearm to threaten and control the victim to steal United States currency from her.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a).


COUNT EIGHT
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

		1.	At all times relevant to this indictment, the Rite Aid Pharmacy located at 5440 Lansdowne Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce by providing to customers pharmaceuticals, accessories, and other goods produced, purchased, and transported from other states and countries to Pennsylvania.
			2.	On or about January 11, 2015, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendant
CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT 

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendant CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT unlawfully attempted to take and obtain United States currency and tobacco products from Rite Aid located at 5440 Lansdowne Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, in the presence of an employee of Rite Aid and against his will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future to the employee of Rite Aid, by claiming to have a firearm to threaten and control the victim to steal United States currency from him and, in order to facilitate his escape, brandishing and using the apparent firearm to steal a car from its owner and flee in the car.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a).




COUNT NINE
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

		1.	At all times relevant to this indictment, McDonald’s located at 7500 City Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce by providing to customers food and other goods produced, purchased, and transported from other states and countries to Pennsylvania.
			2.	On or about January 11, 2015, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendant
CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT 

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendant CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT unlawfully took and obtained approximately $200 in United States currency from McDonald’s located at 7500 City Avenue, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, in the presence of an employee of McDonald’s and against her will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future to the employee of McDonald’s, by claiming to have a firearm to threaten and control the victim to steal United States currency from her.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a).


COUNT TEN
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

		1.	At all times relevant to this indictment, McDonald’s located at 101 South 52nd Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce by providing to customers food and other goods produced, purchased, and transported from other states and countries to Pennsylvania.
			2.	On or about January 12, 2015, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendant
CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT 

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendant CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT unlawfully took and obtained approximately $2,000 in United States currency from McDonald’s located at 101 South 52nd Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, in the presence of an employee of McDonald’s and against her will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future to the employee of McDonald’s, by brandishing and using an actual or facsimile firearm to threaten and control the victim and other employees to steal United States currency from her.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a).


COUNT ELEVEN
THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

		1.	At all times relevant to this indictment, Walgreens located at 53 Chester Pike, Darby Borough, Delaware County, Pennsylvania, was a business engaged in and affecting interstate commerce by providing to customers pharmaceuticals, food, accessories, and other goods produced, purchased, and transported from other states and countries to Pennsylvania.
			2.	On or about January 19, 2015, in Darby Borough, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, defendant
CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT 

obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in commerce, and attempted to do so, by robbery, in that, defendant CARTEL ANTHONY WRIGHT unlawfully took and obtained approximately $353 in United States currency from Walgreens located at 53 Chester Pike, Darby Borough, Delaware County, Pennsylvania, in the presence of an employee of Walgreens and against his will, by means of actual and threatened force, violence, and fear of injury, immediate and future to the employee of Walgreens, by 


brandishing and using a firearm to force the victim into an office and there to threaten and control the victim and to steal United States currency from him and then to force the employee into a bathroom before fleeing.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a).
A TRUE BILL:

                              
FOREPERSON


                        
ZANE DAVID MEMEGER
United States Attorney
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